
Individuals with disabilities requiring auxiliary aids or services can contact Saugatuck Township for reasonable accommodations. If 

you require accommodations, please contact Township Clerk as soon as practically possible prior to the meeting in writing or by 

calling the Township Hall at (269) 857-7721 as some accommodations may require 48-hours to provide. 

Saugatuck Township 

Special Board Meeting 

Monday, June 30, 2025, at 11:00 a.m. 

Saugatuck Township Hall 

3461 Blue Star Hwy. Saugatuck, MI 49453 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/85393271805?pwd=r0gvzv2lNs2i59eCofy3ToMHi8CNvK.1 

Meeting ID: 853 9327 1805 

Passcode: 2021 

1) Call to Order/Pledge of Allegiance

2) Roll Call

3) Reports

1) Presentation(s): None

2) Treasurer’s Report

3) Planning Commission Report

4) Manager Report

4) Public Comment

Persons may speak for up to three minutes when recognized by the Supervisor. An extension of time of up to five minutes may be 

granted by the Supervisor if the extension will not interfere with the conduct of Board business or with other persons who also 

wish to address the Board. 

Each person wishing to address the Board shall be asked to identify themselves and their address. Persons representing an 

organization or group shall indicate whether their comments represent the official view of the organization or group. Persons 

addressing the Board shall observe rules of common courtesy and decorum. 

5) Agenda Approval

6) Consent Agenda
Consent Agendas are considered routine by the Board and will be enacted by one motion. There will be no separate

discussion of these items. If discussion of an item is required, it will be removed from the consent agenda and

considered separately.

1. Bills & Review of Invoices

a) Total Bills and Payroll:

2. Approval of Minutes

1 of 87

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/85393271805?pwd=r0gvzv2lNs2i59eCofy3ToMHi8CNvK.1


Individuals with disabilities requiring auxiliary aids or services can contact Saugatuck Township for reasonable accommodations. If 

you require accommodations, please contact Township Clerk as soon as practically possible prior to the meeting in writing or by 

calling the Township Hall at (269) 857-7721 as some accommodations may require 48-hours to provide. 

 

 

 

 

3. Disbursements 

a) None 

4. Reports 

a) Clerks Report 

b) Road Commission 

c) Fire Board 

d) Parks Commission 

e) Emergency Services Committee 

f) Interurban Board 

g) Harbor Authority 

h) KLSWA Commission 

i) Tri-Community Wildlife Committee 

5. Correspondence 

None 

 

6. Operations 

1. Audit 2024-2025 

7) Fiduciary Oversight 

N/A 

 

8) Policy Development, Evaluation, and Actions 

N/A 

9) Legislative Actions (Ordinances) 

N/A 

 

10) Strategic Discussions and Actions 

N/A 

 

11) Professional Development 

N/A 

12) Other Unfinished Business 

N/A 

 

13) Other New Business 

1) Commission Appointments 

1. Planning Commission 

2) MMRMA Insurance Proposal 

3) Legal Center Service Agreement 

4) Cemetery Proposal 

5) Year-End Budget Amendment) 

2 of 87



Individuals with disabilities requiring auxiliary aids or services can contact Saugatuck Township for reasonable accommodations. If 

you require accommodations, please contact Township Clerk as soon as practically possible prior to the meeting in writing or by 

calling the Township Hall at (269) 857-7721 as some accommodations may require 48-hours to provide. 

 

 

 

 

14) Future Topics 

N/A 

 

15) Public Comments 

 

16) Board Member Comments 

 

17) Adjournment 

3 of 87



 

269.857.7721  |  3461 Blue Star Hwy  |  P.O. Box 100  |  Saugatuck, MI 49453 
www.SaugatuckTownship.org 

1 
 

 
TO:  Township Board 
 
FROM:   Daniel DeFranco, Township Manager 
 
DATE:  June 30, 2025 
 
RE:  Consent Agenda 
 
Recommended Motion: 
 
I motion to approve the Consent Agenda. 
 
Description: 
 
The consent Agenda includes the following item: 
 

1) Audit 2024-2025 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 

4 of 87

http://www.saugatucktownship.org/


 
 

FROM: Daniel DeFranco, Township Manager 

MEETING DATE: June 30, 2025 

SUBJECT: Annual Audit 2025 

 

DESCRIPTION: 

The Township has received an engagement letter from Siegfried-Crandall to conduct the annual 

audit of the Township’s 2024-2025 financial statements.  Completion of an annual audit is best 

financial practice for a local unit of government and a requirement for many grant programs.  

The Board should consider confirming the understanding of services identified in the attached 

engagement letter for the 2024-2025 audit. 

 

BUDGET ACTION REQUIRED: 

Included in the FY 2025-2026 Budget 

 

COMMITTEE/COMMISSION REVIEW 

N/A 

 

LEGAL REVIEW 

N/A 

 

Sample Motion: 

“Move to authorize the Manager to execute the confirmation of understanding of services with Siegfried-

Crandall for the fiscal year 2024-2025 audit of Township financial statements.” 

 

Attached: 

1. Audit Engagement Package 

5 of 87



 

 
 
 
 
 
 June 11, 2025 
 
 
 
Members of the Township Board 
Township of Saugatuck 
3461 Blue Star Highway, P.O. Box 100 
Saugatuck, MI  49453 
 
 
We are pleased to confirm our understanding of the services we are to provide the Township of Saugatuck for the 
year ended June 30, 2025.  
 
Audit Scope and Objectives 
 
We will audit the financial statements of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the aggregate 
remaining fund information, and the disclosures, which collectively comprise the basic financial statements of the 
Township of Saugatuck as of and for the year ended June 30, 2025. Accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America (GAAP) provide for certain required supplementary information (RSI), such as 
management’s discussion and analysis (MD&A), to supplement the Township of Saugatuck’s basic financial 
statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for 
placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. As part of our 
engagement, we will apply certain limited procedures to the Township of Saugatuck’s RSI in accordance with 
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAS). These limited procedures will 
consist of inquiries of management regarding the methods of preparing the information and comparing the 
information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and 
other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We will not express an opinion or 
provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient 
appropriate evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. The following RSI is required by GAAP and 
will be subjected to certain limited procedures, but will not be audited: 
 

1. Management’s discussion and analysis 
2. Budgetary comparison schedules 
3. Schedule of changes in the Township’s net pension liability and related ratios 
4. Schedule of Township pension contributions 

 
We have also been engaged to report on supplementary information other than RSI that accompanies the 
Township of Saugatuck’s financial statements. We will subject the supplementary information to the auditing 
procedures applied in our audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing 
and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the 
financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance 
with GAAS, and we will provide an opinion on it in relation to the financial statements as a whole in a report 
combined with our auditor’s report on the financial statements. 
 
 
 
 
 6 of 87



Members of the Township Board 
Township of Saugatuck 
Page 2 
June 11, 2025 
 
 
The objectives of our audit are to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the financial statements as a whole 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; issue an auditor’s report that includes our 
opinion about whether your financial statements are fairly presented, in all material respects, in conformity with 
GAAP; and report on the fairness of the supplementary information referred to in the second paragraph when 
considered in relation to the financial statements as a whole. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but 
is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS will 
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements, including omissions, can arise from fraud or 
error and are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they 
would influence the judgment of a reasonable user made based on the financial statements. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
 
We will conduct our audit in accordance with GAAS and will include tests of your accounting records and other 
procedures we consider necessary to enable us to express such opinions. As part of an audit in accordance with 
GAAS, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 
 
We will evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting 
estimates made by management. We will also evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements, 
including the disclosures, and determine whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions 
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. We will plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement, whether from (1) errors, 
(2) fraudulent financial reporting, (3) misappropriation of assets, or (4) violations of laws or governmental 
regulations that are attributable to the government or to acts by management or employees acting on behalf of 
the government.  
 
Because of the inherent limitations of an audit, combined with the inherent limitations of internal control, and 
because we will not perform a detailed examination of all transactions, there is an unavoidable risk that some 
material misstatements may not be detected by us, even though the audit is properly planned and performed in 
accordance with GAAS. In addition, an audit is not designed to detect immaterial misstatements or violations of 
laws or governmental regulations that do not have a direct and material effect on the financial statements. 
However, we will inform the appropriate level of management of any material errors, fraudulent financial 
reporting, or misappropriation of assets that comes to our attention. We will also inform the appropriate level of 
management of any violations of laws or governmental regulations that come to our attention. Our responsibility 
as auditors is limited to the period covered by our audit and does not extend to any later periods for which we are 
not engaged as auditors. 
 
We will also conclude, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether there are conditions or events, considered 
in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the government’s ability to continue as a going concern for a 
reasonable period of time. 
 
Our procedures will include tests of documentary evidence supporting the transactions recorded in the accounts 
and direct confirmation of certain assets and liabilities by correspondence with selected customers, creditors, and 
financial institutions. We may also request written representations from your attorneys as part of the engagement 
and they may bill you for responding to this inquiry. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

7 of 87



Members of the Township Board 
Township of Saugatuck 
Page 3 
June 11, 2025 
 
 
Audit Procedures - Internal Control 
 
We will obtain an understanding of the government and its environment, including the system of internal control, 
sufficient to identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to 
error or fraud, and to design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks and obtain evidence that is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinions. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement 
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional 
omissions, misrepresentation, or the override of internal control. An audit is not designed to provide assurance on 
internal control or to identify deficiencies in internal control. Accordingly, we will express no such opinion. 
However, during the audit, we will communicate to management and those charged with governance internal 
control related matters that are required to be communicated under AICPA professional standards. 
 
We have identified the following significant risks of material misstatement as part of our audit planning: 
 

1. Management override of controls  
2. Depreciation schedules are not maintained for the capital assets of the governmental activities  

 
Audit Procedures - Compliance 
 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material 
misstatement, we will perform tests of the Township of Saugatuck’s compliance with the provisions of applicable 
laws, regulations, contracts, and agreements. However, the objective of our audit will not be to provide an opinion 
on overall compliance, and we will not express such an opinion. 
 
Other Services 
 
We will also provide the following nonattest services: 
 

• Preparation of depreciation schedules based on useful lives and depreciation methods determined by 
you 

• Preparation of the Township’s financial statements, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted 
accounting principles, based on trial balances provided by you 

• Preparation of Forms F-65, 5047, and 5572 that we will submit to the State after your review 
 
We will perform the services in accordance with applicable professional standards. The other services are limited 
to the nonattest services previously defined. We, in our sole professional judgment, reserve the right to refuse to 
perform any procedure or take any action that could be construed as assuming management responsibilities. 
 
You agree to assume all management responsibilities for financial statement preparation services and any other 
nonattest services we provide; oversee the services by designating an individual, preferably from senior 
management, with suitable skill, knowledge, or experience; evaluate the adequacy and results of the services; and 
accept responsibility for them. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

8 of 87



Members of the Township Board 
Township of Saugatuck 
Page 4 
June 11, 2025 
 
 
Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements 
 
Our audit will be conducted on the basis that you acknowledge and understand your responsibility for designing, 
implementing, and maintaining internal controls relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial 
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, including monitoring ongoing 
activities; for the selection and application of accounting principles; and for the preparation and fair presentation 
of the financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America with the oversight of those charged with governance. 
 
Management is responsible for making drafts of financial statements, all financial records, and related information 
available to us; for the accuracy and completeness of that information (including information from outside of the 
general and subsidiary ledgers); and for the evaluation of whether there are any conditions or events, considered 
in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the government’s ability to continue as a going concern for the 
12 months after the financial statements date or shortly thereafter (for example, within an additional three 
months if currently known). You are also responsible for providing us with (1) access to all information of which 
you are aware that is relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements, such as records, 
documentation, identification of all related parties and all related-party relationships and transactions, and other 
matters; (2) additional information that we may request for the purpose of the audit; and (3) unrestricted access 
to persons within the government from whom we determine it necessary to obtain audit evidence. At the 
conclusion of our audit, we will require certain written representations from you about the financial statements 
and related matters. 
 
Your responsibilities include adjusting the financial statements to correct material misstatements and for 
confirming to us in the management representation letter that the effects of any uncorrected misstatements 
aggregated by us during the current engagement and pertaining to the latest period presented are immaterial, 
both individually and in the aggregate, to the financial statements of each opinion unit taken as a whole. 
 
You are responsible for the design and implementation of programs and controls to prevent and detect fraud, and 
for informing us about all known or suspected fraud affecting the government involving (1) management, 
(2) employees who have significant roles in internal control, and (3) others where the fraud could have a material 
effect on the financial statements. Your responsibilities include informing us of your knowledge of any allegations 
of fraud or suspected fraud affecting the government received in communications from employees, former 
employees, grantors, regulators, or others. In addition, you are responsible for identifying and ensuring that the 
government complies with applicable laws and regulations. 
 
With regard to including the auditor’s report in an exempt offering document, you agree that the aforementioned 
auditor’s report, or reference to Siegfried Crandall P.C., will not be included in any such offering document without 
our prior permission to consent. Any agreement to perform work in connection with an exempt offering 
document, including an agreement to provide permission or consent, will be a separate engagement.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

9 of 87



Members of the Township Board 
Township of Saugatuck 
Page 5 
June 11, 2025 
 
 
You are responsible for the preparation of the supplementary information in conformity with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America. You agree to include our report on the supplementary 
information in any document that contains, and indicates that we have reported on, the supplementary 
information. You also agree to include the audited financial statements with any presentation of the 
supplementary information that includes our report thereon. Your responsibilities include acknowledging to us in 
the representation letter that (1) you are responsible for presentation of the supplementary information in 
accordance with GAAP; (2) you believe the supplementary information, including its form and content, is fairly 
presented in accordance with GAAP; (3) the methods of measurement or presentation have not changed from 
those used in the prior period (or, if they have changed, the reasons for such changes); and (4) you have disclosed 
to us any significant assumptions or interpretations underlying the measurement or presentation of the 
supplementary information. 
 
Engagement Administration, Fees, and Other 
 
We understand that your employees will prepare all confirmations we request and will locate any documents 
selected by us for testing. 
 
Daniel L. Veldhuizen is the engagement shareholder and is responsible for supervising the engagement and signing 
the report or authorizing another individual to sign it. 
 
Our fee for these services will be based on the actual time spent at our standard hourly rates, which vary according 
to the degree of responsibility involved and the experience level of the personnel assigned to your audit. Our 
invoices for these fees will be rendered each month as work progresses and are payable on presentation. Based on 
our understanding of the Township’s audit requirements, our fee will not exceed $10,900. This fee is based on 
anticipated cooperation from your personnel and the assumption that unexpected circumstances will not be 
encountered during the audit. If significant additional time is necessary, we will discuss it with you and arrive at a 
new fee estimate before we incur the additional costs. 
 
Reporting 
 
We will issue a written report upon completion of our audit of the Township of Saugatuck’s financial statements. 
Our report will be addressed to the members of the members of the Township Board of the Township of Saugatuck 
Circumstances may arise in which our report may differ from its expected form and content based on the results of 
our audit. Depending on the nature of these circumstances, it may be necessary for us to modify our opinions, add 
a separate section, or add an emphasis-of-matter or other-matter paragraph to our auditor’s report, or if 
necessary, withdraw from this engagement. If our opinions are other than unmodified, we will discuss the reasons 
with you in advance. If, for any reason, we are unable to complete the audit or are unable to form or have not 
formed opinions, we may decline to express opinions, or we may withdraw from this engagement. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

10 of 87



Members of the Township Board 
Township of Saugatuck 
Page 6 
June 11, 2025 
 
 
We appreciate the opportunity to be of service to the Township of Saugatuck and believe this letter accurately 
summarizes the significant terms of our engagement. If you have any questions, please let us know. If you agree 
with the terms of our engagement as described in this letter, please sign the enclosed copy, and return it to us. 
 
 Sincerely, 
 
 SIEGFRIED CRANDALL P.C. 

  
 Daniel L. Veldhuizen, Shareholder 
 
 
  
RESPONSE: 
 
This letter correctly sets forth the understanding of the Township of Saugatuck. 
 
By:    
 
Title:    
 
Date:    
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G:\DATA\8005\Corrspnd\2025\8005 ENG 0625.doc 

11 of 87



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 June 11, 2025 
 
 
 
Daniel DeFranco, Manager 
Township of Saugatuck 
3461 Blue Star Highway, P.O. Box 100 
Saugatuck, MI  49453 
 
 
Dear Daniel: 
 
Following is a list of items we will need to perform the Township’s audit as of and for the year ended June 30, 
2025. Please share this list with the appropriate officials and staff. 
 
Items we need before the beginning of fieldwork: 
• Backup file, from your BS&A accounting software program, that includes all transactions through June 30, 

2025 (we would appreciate receiving the files one week before our fieldwork) 
 
Items to have available by the beginning of fieldwork: 
• Board minutes since July 2024 
• Bank account statements for the entire fiscal year 
• Payroll tax returns (941s, etc.) and payroll journals for the fiscal year 
• 2024 W-2, W-3, and 1099 forms issued 
• Insurance coverage in effect during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2025 
• Remittance advices and paid invoices for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2025, and any since June 30, 2025 
• Original and final amended budgets for the year ended June 30, 2025, and adopted budgets for the 

subsequent year 
• Bank reconciliations for all accounts at June 30, 2025, and the July 2025 bank statements for all accounts 
• Information regarding all investments held as of June 30, 2025, including financial institution, account number, 

amount, interest rate, purchase date, and maturity date 
• Receivables at June 30, 2025, including schedule of amounts due showing amount, source, date earned, date 

received, and accounting classification (for practical considerations, you may limit the schedule to items of at 
least $2,000) 

• Special assessment balances, by district, as of June 30, 2025 
• Schedule of special assessment collections (including payoffs), by district, for the year 
• Details regarding new special assessments, if any, during the year ended June 30, 2025 
• Delinquent personal property tax listing as of June 30, 2025 (parcel no., year, amount) 
• Capital asset additions and dispositions during the year; have support available and provide purchase date, 

historical cost, and useful life for additions 
• Accounts payable at June 30, 2025, including schedule of amounts due showing payee, amount, date 

services/products received, accounting classification, date paid (for practical considerations, you may limit the 
schedule to bills of at least $500) 

12 of 87



Daniel DeFranco, Manager 
Township of Saugatuck 
Page 2 
June 11, 2025 
 
 
• Schedule of any material (for practical considerations, you may limit this to at least $1,000) unpaid invoices as 

of the date of fieldwork 
• Schedule of accrued payroll, by fund, at June 30, 2025 (show dates worked, amount, accounting classification, 

and date paid) 
• Schedule of compensated absences, if any, at June 30, 2025 (show name, cumulative hours, and pay rate as of 

year end) 
• Schedule of long-term debt activity for the year ended June 30, 2025 
• Long-term debt issued, if any, during the year ended June 30, 2025 (show amount of proceeds, interest rate, 

payment schedule, etc.) 
• Property tax information, including tax warrants (summer and winter 2024); settlement worksheets; and 

certification of tax rates (Form L-4029) 
• Schedule of fund balance restrictions and assignments as of June 30, 2025 
• Schedule of approved salaries and wage rates for the year 
• A copy of the most recent MERS pension actuarial report, in electronic format  
 
Please contact me if you need clarification or assistance in gathering the above information. Ann Knafel, from our 
technology department, is willing to assist you in exporting a file from your accounting software program that 
contains all transactions through June 30, 2025. Please contact her as soon as you have completed posting 
transactions for the year. She can be reached at aknafel@scpro.net. 
 
Please contact me so we can determine a mutually agreeable date to begin our audit fieldwork. We look forward 
to working with you and everyone else at the Township again this year. 
 
 Sincerely, 
 
 SIEGFRIED CRANDALL P.C. 

  
 Daniel L. Veldhuizen, Shareholder 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G:\DATA\8005\CORRSPND\2025\8005 PM 0625.doc 

13 of 87



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 June 11, 2025 
 
 
 
Members of the Township Board 
Township of Saugatuck 
3461 Blue Star Highway, P.O. Box 100 
Saugatuck, MI  49453 
 
 
We are engaged to audit the financial statements of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the 
aggregate remaining fund information of the Township of Saugatuck for the year ended June 30, 2025. 
Professional standards require that we provide you with the following information related to our audit. 
 
Our Responsibilities under U.S. Generally Accepted Auditing Standards 
 
As stated in our engagement letter dated June 11, 2025, our responsibility, as described by professional standards, 
is to express opinions about whether the financial statements prepared by management with your oversight are 
fairly presented, in all material respects, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. Our 
audit of the financial statements does not relieve you or management of your responsibilities. 
 
Generally accepted accounting principles provide for certain required supplementary information (RSI) to 
supplement the basic financial statements. Our responsibility with respect to management’s discussion and 
analysis, budgetary comparison schedules, and pension schedules, which supplement the basic financial 
statements, is to apply certain limited procedures in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards. 
However, the RSI will not be audited, and because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient 
evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance, we will not express an opinion or provide any assurance 
on the RSI. 
 
We have been engaged to report on the combining nonmajor governmental fund financial statements and 
schedule of bond retirement and annual interest requirements (supplementary information), which accompany 
the financial statements but are not RSI. Our responsibility for this supplementary information, as described by 
professional standards, is to evaluate the presentation of the supplementary information in relation to the 
financial statements as a whole and to report on whether the supplementary information is fairly stated, in all 
material respects, in relation to the financial statements as a whole. 
 
Communication 
 
We would also appreciate the opportunity to talk to you or meet with you to discuss this information further 
because a two-way dialogue can provide valuable information for the audit process. 
 
You may assist us in understanding the Township of Saugatuck and its environment by identifying appropriate 
sources of audit evidence and providing information about specific transactions or events. We expect that you will 
communicate with us on any matters you consider relevant to the audit and the Township’s system of internal 
control over financial reporting. Other matters that you communicate may significantly affect our audit 
procedures. You need to communicate to us any suspicion or detection of fraud, or any concerns you may have 
about the integrity of the Township’s management. 

14 of 87



Members of the Township Board 
Township of Saugatuck 
Page 2 
June 11, 2025 
 
 
We will inform you of any material errors and any fraudulent financial reporting or misappropriation of assets that 
come to our attention. We will also inform you of any violations of laws or governmental regulations that come to 
our attention, disagreements with management, and other serious difficulties encountered in performing the 
audit. We will also communicate to you and to management any significant deficiencies or material weaknesses in 
internal control over financial reporting that become known to us during the course of the audit. Other matters 
arising from the audit that are, in our professional judgment, significant and relevant to you in your oversight of 
the financial reporting process will be communicated to you in writing. 
 
Independence 
 
Our independence policies and procedures are designed to provide reasonable assurance that our firm and its 
personnel comply with applicable professional independence standards. Our policies address financial interests, 
business and family relationships, and nonattest services that may be thought to bear on independence. In 
addition, our policies restrict certain nonattest services that may be provided by Siegfried Crandall P.C. and require 
audit clients to accept certain responsibilities in connection with the provision of the following permitted 
nonattest services: 
 

• Preparation of depreciation schedules based on useful lives and depreciation methods determined by 
you 

• Preparation of journal entries, other than proposed audit entries, that you will review and approve 
• Preparation of the Township’s financial statements, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted 

accounting principles, based on trial balances provided by you 
• Preparation of Forms F-65, 5047, and 5572 that we will submit to the State after your review 

 
The Audit Planning Process 
 
Our audit approach places a strong emphasis on obtaining an understanding of how your Township functions. This 
enables us to identify key audit components and tailor our procedures to the unique aspects of your government. 
The development of a specific audit plan will begin by obtaining an understanding of the Township of Saugatuck’s 
financial reporting objectives, strategies, risks, and performance. 
 
We will obtain an understanding of the Township and its environment, including internal control over financial 
reporting, sufficient to assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements and to design the 
nature, timing, and extent of further audit procedures. Material misstatements may result from (1) errors, 
(2) fraudulent financial reporting, (3) misappropriation of assets, or (4) violations of laws or governmental 
regulations that are attributable to the Township or to acts by management or employees acting on behalf of the 
Township. We will also establish an overall materiality limit for audit purposes. 
 
We will conduct formal discussions among engagement team members to consider how and where your financial 
statements might be susceptible to material misstatement due to fraud or error. 
 
 

15 of 87



Members of the Township Board 
Township of Saugatuck 
Page 3 
June 11, 2025 
 
 
We will use this knowledge and understanding, together with other factors, to assess the risk that errors or fraud 
may cause a material misstatement at the financial statement level. The assessment of the risks of material 
misstatement at the financial statement level provides us with parameters within which to design the audit 
procedures for specific account balances and classes of transactions. Our risk assessment process at the account-
balance or class-of-transactions level consists of: 
 

• An assessment of inherent risk regarding the likelihood of material misstatement arising from the 
nature of an account balance or class of transactions; and 

• An evaluation of the design effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting and our 
assessment of control risk 

 
We will then determine the nature, timing, and extent of substantive procedures, and any tests of controls we 
consider to be necessary given the risks identified and the controls as we understand them. 
 
The Concept of Materiality in Planning and Executing the Audit 
 
In planning the audit, the materiality limit is viewed as the maximum aggregate misstatements, which if detected 
and not corrected, would cause us to modify our opinion on the financial statements. The materiality limit is an 
allowance not only for misstatements that will be detected and not corrected but also for misstatements that may 
not be detected by the audit. Our assessment of materiality throughout the audit will be based on both 
quantitative and qualitative considerations. Because of the interaction of quantitative and qualitative 
considerations, misstatements of a relatively small amount could have a material effect on the current financial 
statements, as well as financial statements of future periods. At the end of the audit, we will inform you of all 
individual, unrecorded misstatements aggregated by us in connection with our evaluation of our audit test results. 
 
Our Approach to Internal Control Relevant to the Audit 
 
Our audit of the financial statements will include obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial 
reporting sufficient to plan the audit and to determine the nature, timing, and extent of audit procedures to be 
performed. An audit is not designed to provide assurance on internal control over financial reporting or to identify 
all deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting. However, during the audit, we will communicate to 
management and those charged with governance internal control related matters that are required to be 
communicated under AICPA professional standards. 
 
Timing of the Audit 
 
As in prior years, we will confirm mutually agreeable dates for the performance of audit fieldwork, to take place 
after the end of the Township’s fiscal year. The Township’s adherence to this schedule and timely preparation of 
information requested by us is essential to our timely completion of the audit. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

16 of 87



Members of the Township Board 
Township of Saugatuck 
Page 4 
June 11, 2025 
 
 
Closing 
 
We will be pleased to respond to any questions you have about the foregoing. We appreciate the opportunity to 
be of service to the Township of Saugatuck. 
 
This information is intended solely for the use of the Board members and management of the Township of 
Saugatuck and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 
 
 Sincerely, 
 
 SIEGFRIED CRANDALL P.C. 

  
 Daniel L. Veldhuizen, Shareholder 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G:\DATA\8005\CORRSPND\2025\8005 prelim SAS 114 0625.doc 

17 of 87



 
 

FROM: Daniel DeFranco, Township Manager 

MEETING DATE: June 30, 2025 

SUBJECT: Planning Commission Appointments  

 

DESCRIPTION: 

The Board needs to fill two (2) vacancies on the Planning Commission for full 3-year terms due 

to expire on June 30th.  Commissioners David Ihle and Denise Webster have both submitted 

applications for reappointment. The Township has also received an application for reappointment 

from Douglas Manning.  The Board should carefully review application material and consider 

commissioner performances.  Note that for Planning Commission appointments, the Supervisor 

nominates candidates for appointments. 

 

BUDGET ACTION REQUIRED: 

N/A 

 

COMMITTEE/COMMISSION REVIEW 

N/A 

 

LEGAL REVIEW 

N/A 

 

Sample Motion: 

“Move to approve the appointment of _______________________ and ____________________ to the 

Planning Commission for 3-year terms set to expire on June 30, 2028.” 

 

Attached: 

1. Webster Application 

2. Manning Application 

3. Planning Commission Vacancy Public Notice 

18 of 87



19 of 87



20 of 87



21 of 87



22 of 87



23 of 87



24 of 87



NOTICE TO SAUGATUCK TOWNSHIP RESIDENTS 
 

Saugatuck Township has openings on its Planning Commission, Zoning Board of Appeals, and 
Zoning Board of Appeals Alternate. 
The following seats are open for appointment: 

• Planning Commission (2): The Planning Commission seats (2) are for full 3-year terms with 
an effective start date of June 30, 2025. Individuals interested in applying for appointment 
should be willing to review and research issues and deliberate objectively in cooperation with 
other Board/Commission members. To serve in one of these positions, you must (1) be a 
resident of Saugatuck Township, (2) have time to attend monthly meetings, and (3) prepare 
as necessary. 

• Zoning Boad of Appeals (2): The Zoning Board of Appeals seats (2) are for full 3-year 
terms with an effective start date of June 30, 2025. Individuals interested in applying for 
appointment should be willing to research, review, and objectively deliberate in cooperation 
with other board/commission members. To serve in one of these positions, you must (1) be a 
resident of Saugatuck Township, (2) have time to attend monthly meetings, and (3) prepare 
as necessary. 

• Zoning Board of Appeals Alternate (1). The Zoning Board of Appeals Alternate seat (1) is 
for a full 3-year term with an effective start date of June 30, 2025. Individuals interested in 
applying for appointment should be willing to research, review, and objectively deliberate in 
cooperation with other board/commission members. To serve in one of these positions, you 
must (1) be a resident of Saugatuck Township, (2) have time to attend monthly meetings, and 
(3) prepare as necessary. 

Applicants must complete an Application for Appointment, which can be found at the 
Township Office or at www.saugatucktownshipmi.gov. Completed applications will be 
considered by the Township Board at a regularly scheduled meeting on June 11th, 2025. 
Applicants are encouraged to attend the meeting. Deadline to apply is Friday, May 30th, 2025. If 
you previously submitted an Application for Appointment and would like to be reconsidered for 
a position, please contact the Township Office at 269-857-7721 or 
ddefranco@saugatucktownshipmi.gov to let the office know your intention. Please contact the 
Township Office with any questions and/or to view the Township’s adopted appointment policy.  

 

POSTED: May 1, 2025 

25 of 87

http://www.saugatucktownshipmi.gov/
mailto:ddefranco@saugatucktownshipmi.gov


 
 

FROM: Daniel DeFranco, Township Manager 

MEETING DATE: June 30, 2025 

SUBJECT: MMRMA Insurance Proposal 

 

DESCRIPTION: 

For the Board's consideration is an insurance coverage proposal by the Michigan Municipal Risk 

Management Authority for Saugatuck Township. MMRMA is a public entity insurance pool that 

provides liability, property, and data breach coverage to governmental entities. By accepting the 

proposal, the Township would become a member of MMRMA and have access to the benefits of 

membership.  MMRMA offers a range of services, including but not limited to:  

• Risk Assessment and Mitigation Strategies 

• Training and Education Programs 

• Claims Management and Legal Support 

• Property and Liability Insurance Coverage 

In addition, MMRMA offers grants to support risk mitigation and distributes excess net assets to 

current renewing MMRMA members.  

The Board should consider accepting the coverage proposal from MMRMA. 

 

BUDGET ACTION REQUIRED: 

$26,101 included in the FY 2025-2026 Budget 

 

COMMITTEE/COMMISSION REVIEW 

N/A 

 

LEGAL REVIEW 

N/A 

 

Sample Motion: 

“Move to approve the Michigan Municipal Risk Management Authority Coverage Proposal effective July 

1, 2025 to July 1, 2026.” 

 

Attached: 

1. MMRMA Insurance Coverage Document 

26 of 87



27 of 87



28 of 87



29 of 87



30 of 87



31 of 87



32 of 87



33 of 87



34 of 87



35 of 87



36 of 87



37 of 87



38 of 87



39 of 87



40 of 87



41 of 87



42 of 87



43 of 87



44 of 87



45 of 87



46 of 87



47 of 87



48 of 87



49 of 87



50 of 87



51 of 87



52 of 87



53 of 87



54 of 87



55 of 87



56 of 87



57 of 87



58 of 87



59 of 87



60 of 87



61 of 87



62 of 87



63 of 87



64 of 87



65 of 87



66 of 87



67 of 87



68 of 87



69 of 87



70 of 87



71 of 87



72 of 87



73 of 87



74 of 87



75 of 87



 
 

FROM: Daniel DeFranco, Township Manager 

MEETING DATE: June 30, 2025 

SUBJECT: ACLAC Contract 

 

DESCRIPTION: 

For the Board’s consideration is a proposed contract between Saugatuck Township and the 

Allegan County Legal Assistance Center (ACLAC) to provide legal services to Township 

residents. The ACLAC proposes to provide Saugatuck Township residents tools, resources and 

information to aid in competent self-representation in civil court matters for a sum of $1,500. 

The contract duration is for one-year, expiring on June 30, 2026. Last year, the ACLAC provided 

services to 60 Township residents, 70% of whom have an annual income of less than $50,000. To 

assist the Township in better understanding services provided to Township residents, the ACLAC 

proposes to provide an annual written and oral report to the Board. 

 

BUDGET ACTION REQUIRED: 

Included in the FY 2025-2026 Budget 

 

COMMITTEE/COMMISSION REVIEW 

N/A 

 

LEGAL REVIEW 

N/A 

 

Sample Motion: 

“Move to approve the Legal Assistance Contract between Saugatuck Township and Allegan 

County Legal Assistance Center to expire on June 30, 2026.” 

 

Attached: 

1. Allegan County Legal Assistance Center Contract 

2. ACLAC Township Data 

76 of 87



77 of 87



78 of 87



79 of 87



Saugatuck Township 1a3a2024 .. 3a13.2025 Count by Reason 

for Visit 60 residents assisted 

Civil Issue

3.3% 
Personal Protection 

3.3% 
Parenting Time 

6.7% 

Divorce - New

20.0% 

Probate 

5.0% 
Custody - Existing

8.3% 

Custody - New

8.3% 
Application to Set Aside 

3.3% 

Divorce - Existing

33.3%

Landlord/Ten ant 

5.0% 

80 of 87



81 of 87



82 of 87



 
 

FROM: Daniel DeFranco, Township Manager 

MEETING DATE: June 30, 2025 

SUBJECT: Columbaria Proposal for Riverside Cemetery 

 

DESCRIPTION: 

For Board consideration is a proposal by Viridis Design Group to complete columbaria design 

and prepare construction documents for Riverside Cemetery.  The construction of a columbaria is 

part of the Township’s master plan for Riverside Cemetery and satisfies the need for additional 

cremation space.  Design and construction of a columbaria is included in the Fiscal Year 2025-

2026 Budget.  Note that the proposal does not include construction administration.  The Board 

should carefully review the project understanding and scope of work and consider approving the 

proposal. 

 

BUDGET ACTION REQUIRED: 

$42,250, included in the FY ’25-’26 Budget 

 

COMMITTEE/COMMISSION REVIEW 

N/A 

 

LEGAL REVIEW 

N/A 

 

Sample Motion: 

“Move to approve the Proposal for Professional Landscape Architecture Services for Riverside Cemetery 

Columbaria and Landscape Improvements..” 

 

Attached: 

1. Viridis Columbaria Proposal 

 

83 of 87



2926 West Main Street 

Kalamazoo, Michigan 49006 

 

1430 Monroe NW, Suite 210 

Grand Rapids, Michigan 49505 

CREATING INSPIRATIONAL AND ENDURING EXPERIENCES 

June 20, 2025 

 

Proposal for Professional Landscape Architecture Services  

for Saugatuck Township: Riverside Cemetery Improvements 
 

To:   Saugatuck Township 

  3461 Blue Star Hwy, Saugatuck, MI 49453 

Attn:  Daniel DeFranco, PhD 

  Township Manager 

From:  Lindsey Gadbois, PLA 

  Viridis Design Group 

 

___________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Dear Daniel: 

Viridis Design Group is pleased to submit this proposal to Saugatuck Township for landscape architecture services 

for improvements to Riverside Cemetery. This proposal outlines our approach to redesigning the northeast corner 

of the site, including enhanced circulation, a custom columbarium and Township gateway, landscape 

beautification, and a more welcoming entry sequence. Our team includes columbarium design specialists, Eickhof, 

to assist with the design and detailing of this feature. 

 

PROJECT UNDERSTANDINGPROJECT UNDERSTANDINGPROJECT UNDERSTANDINGPROJECT UNDERSTANDING    

The historic Riverside Cemetery is located at 3461 Clearbrook Drive in Saugatuck Township. The cemetery is 

approximately 14 acres, with the project area at 2.5 acres. The Township is experiencing a high demand for 

columbarium burials, as there is not currently one located in the area. As Riverside is at max capacity, the 

Township desires to use the remaining open space at the northeast corner of the cemetery to build a unique 

columbarium that dually functions as a Township Gateway along Blue Star Highway. The improvements will 

include a new vehicular interior circulation route with directional signage and an improved entry experience off of 

Clearbrook Drive. A barrier-free looped path to the columbarium is desired along with an intimate gathering 

space with seating and landscaping. The improvements will align with the Township’s goal of reframing Riverside 

as not only a cemetery, but a beautiful park-like setting that welcomes the community for passive recreation. 

    

SCOPE OF WORKSCOPE OF WORKSCOPE OF WORKSCOPE OF WORK    

Our proposed scope of work is as follows: 

 

PHASE 1:  SCHEMATIC DESIGN – DESIGN DEVELOPMENT 

July 14 2025 – September 15, 2025 

 

Base Map Preparation/Background Research: 

Base map preparation will include a thorough assembly of aerial maps and topography from Allegan County and a 

site survey and ground penetrating radar (acquired by the Township). The project team will perform a site visit for 

inventory and analysis, with a Township representative (if desired). 

 

 

84 of 87



  
CREATING INSPIRATIONAL AND ENDURING EXPERIENCES 

Concept Development: 

• 2 Schematic site layout options, with rendered plans  

• 3 Schematic columbaria options, with rendered plans and 3D imagery  

• 2 Schematic cemetery entrance options, rendered 

• Precedent imagery of site features 

• Preliminary planting palette 

• Lighting and precedent imagery 

• Preliminary opinion of probable costs 

 

Review Meeting #1 (Mid-August) 

VIRIDIS (in-person) and Eickhof (virtual) will meet with the client team to review schematic designs. Our team will 

point out any unforeseen obstacles that may need to be considered, along with a cost range for each option.  

Our team will lead a discussion with the Township to narrow down a design direction for a preferred concept that 

reflects the goals and objectives of the Township’s vision for the cemetery. 

 

Design Development: 

• Refined site layout plan, columbarium design, and entrance feature 

• Rendered site plan and 3D imagery 

• Preliminary landscape, grading, and electric plans 

• Opinion of probable costs 

 

Review Meeting #2 (Mid-September) 

Viridis (in-person) and Eickhof (virtual) will meet with the client team to review the preferred schematic design 

and present an updated opinion of probable costs. The goal of this meeting is finalize all major design decisions so 

the team can proceed with a construction documentation package. Viridis can assist in presenting the preferred 

design to the Township Board, upon request. 

 

 

PHASE 2:  CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTATION - BIDDING: 

September 15 – January 15, 2026 

 

VIRIDIS will prepare a complete construction documentation package that will include the following: 

• Existing conditions, demolition, and sediment and erosion control plans 

• Layout, grading, landscape, utility (if needed), electrical, structural, and irrigation plans 

• Site Details 

• Columbarium contract drawings, granite samples, and niche pre-sales consultation 

• Specifications 

• Opinion of Probable Costs 

• All above documents in digital format (PDF) 

 

Our scope includes coordination with consultants for geotechnical soil borings and a structural review of the 

columbarium foundation to ensure proper design and long-term stability. These services will inform the 

foundation detailing and site preparation requirements. 

 

85 of 87



  
CREATING INSPIRATIONAL AND ENDURING EXPERIENCES 

A virtual client review meeting will be held at the completion of 60% and 90% documentation. The final bid 

package PDF will be submitted to the Township. Viridis will assist the township in the public bidding process in 

advertising the project, facilitating a pre-bid meeting (if needed), review bids, and make a recommendation to 

award the project. Once selected, Viridis will draft the contract between owner and contractor. 

 

PROFESSIONALPROFESSIONALPROFESSIONALPROFESSIONAL    SERVICES FEESERVICES FEESERVICES FEESERVICES FEE    

We propose to provide the services described above for a lump sum fee of $4$4$4$42222,,,,222250505050. Reimbursable expenses are 

included in the fee. Invoices will be submitted monthly based on the percentage of work completed and payment 

is due within thirty (30) days from the date of the invoice.  

 

Specific items that are not included in our fees are as follows: 

• Public engagement sessions and meetings not outlined above 

• Utility design or off-site improvements not mentioned above 

• Surveying 

• Environmental studies such as wetland delineations or hydrology analysis 

• Permitting 

• Construction Administration Servies 

 

We appreciate the opportunity to continue supporting the Township through this phase of design. Our team will 

remain available to provide construction oversight, respond to contractor inquiries, and help ensure the project is 

executed in accordance with the contract documents. The fee for these construction administration services will 

be based on the final scope of work and negotiated at the time of bidding. 

 

Should you have any questions or need additional information, feel free to contact us. We look forward to 

working with you on this exciting project! 

 

Sincerely, 

VIRIDIS Design Group 

           
Lindsey Gadbois, PLA, ASLA    Trevor Bosworth, PLA, ASLA 

Landscape Architect     Landscape Architect, Principal 

 

 

If this proposal meets your approval, please sign below and return to lindsey@virdg.com 

 

 

 

__________________________________           __________________   

Signature      Date 

 

 

86 of 87



 
 

FROM: Daniel DeFranco, Township Manager 

MEETING DATE: June 30, 2025 

SUBJECT: End-of-Year Budget Amendments 

 

DESCRIPTION: 

For Board consideration is approval of end-of-year Budget Amendments.  Quarterly review of 

the budget and necessary amendments is required by the Township’s Financial Policy. 

 

BUDGET ACTION REQUIRED: 

N/A 

 

COMMITTEE/COMMISSION REVIEW 

N/A 

 

LEGAL REVIEW 

N/A 

 

Sample Motion: 

“Move to approve the end-of-year Budget Amendment as presented.” 

 

Attached: 

1. End-of-Year Budget Amendment 

87 of 87


	06302025-Draft-Agenda.pdf
	6.6.1 Annual Audit Memo.pdf
	6.6.1.1 Audit Engagement Letter.pdf
	8005 ENG 0625.pdf
	Audit Procedures - Internal Control
	Other Services
	Engagement Administration, Fees, and Other

	8005 PM 0625.pdf
	8005 prelim SAS 114 0625.pdf

	13.1 PC Appointment Memo.pdf
	13.1.1 PC - WEBSTER App.pdf
	13.1.2 PC - MANNING App.pdf
	13.1.3 NOTICE-OF-VACANCIES-05012025.pdf
	13.2 MMRMA Insurance Memo.pdf
	13.2.1 Insurance Proposal.pdf
	13.3. Legal Center Contract Memo.pdf
	13.3.1 Legal Center Service Agreement.pdf
	13.3.2 Legal Center Stats.pdf
	13.4 Cemetery Proposal Memo.pdf
	13.4.1 Riverside Cem Proposal.pdf
	13.5 Budget Amendment Memo.pdf



